II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR BY 
FINDING THAT THE USE OF A JURY INSTRUCTION VIOLATED 
THE RESPONDENT'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS. 

2. 	 THE CIRCUIT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN IT 
RULED THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S DECISION TO 
LIMIT THE RESPONDENT TO FOUR CHARACTER 
WITNESSES DENIED THE RESPONDENT HIS CONSTITUTIONAL 
RIGHT TO PRODUCE EVIDENCE IN HIS DEFENSE. 

3. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURTCOMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR BY 
RULING THAT THE CONVICTION SHOULD BE REVERSED AND 
REMANDED FOR A NEW TRIAL BASED ON A FINDING OF 
INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE. 

III. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

The Petitioner contends that oral argument is necessary in this case. The 

Petitioner contends that the oral argument in this case should be subject to Rule 19 of 

the Rules of Appellate Procedure. The Petitioner contends that the case is appropriate for a 

Rule 19 argument in that the Petitioner claims that the Circuit Court engaged in an 

unsustainable exercise of discretion and where the law governing that discretion is settled, 

and that the Circuit Court's ruling dealt with a claim of insufficiency of evidence against the 

weight of the evidence of the case. Also the Petitioner contends that the case involves 

assignments of error in the application of settled law. The Petitioner contends that the case 

is not appropriate for a memorandum decision. Rule 21 of the Rules of Appellate 

Procedure states that a memorandum decision reversing the decision of the Circuit Court 

should be issued in limited circumstances and due to the 

complexity Of this case it would be difficult for this Honorable Court to provide a concise 
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statement of their reasoning for a reversal. 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The Respondent, Joseph H. Lavigne, Jr., on November 20, 1996, was convicted of 

sexual assault in the first degree, sexual abuse resulting in bodily injury, and incest of his 

daughter. Mr. Lavigne had exhausted his direct appellate rights after trial and initiated a 

habeas proceeding in 1999. On February 6th and 7th , 2010, an omnibus hearing was held in 

the Circuit Court of Putnam County. Judge Spaulding on April 29, 2011, issued a ruling in 

which he vacated the convictions of Mr. Lavigne and granted Mr. Lavigne a new trial. 1 The 

Circuit Court's ruling was based on three (3) issues. The Circuit Court found that a jury 

instruction was inappropriately given, it found that the trial Judge abused his discretion by 

only allowing four (4) character witnesses to testify on behalf of Mr. Lavigne, and finally the 

Circuit Court determined that the evidence as a matter of law was insufficient to support the 

convictions. 

West Virginia Code, Chapter 53, Article 4a, Section 9, gives the Petitioner the right 

to appeal this final judgment entered by a Circuit Court. According to the case of State ex 

rei Stephen P. Bowers v. Thomas Scott. Administrator, South Western Regional Jail ... 226 

W.va. 130,697 S.E.2d 722 (W.va. 2010), this Honorable Court stated that in reviewing 

challenges to the findings and conclusions of the Circuit Court in a habeas corpus action, 

the Supreme Court of Appeals applies a three prong standard of review: it reviews the final 

1The Petitioner will refer to the Court ruling that is the subject of this appeal as 
"The Circuit Court ruling" to avoid any confusion with the trial Judge's rulings (Judge 
Clarence L. Watt). The Petitioner will refer to the judicial rulings made by the 
Honorable Clarence L. Watt as the Trial Court rulings). 
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order and the ultimate disposition under the abuse of discretion standards; the underlying 

factual findings under a clearly erroneous standard; and the questions of law are subject to 

de novo review. 

v. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

As stated in the Circuit Court's opinion, in the early morning hours of Sunday, 

February 11, 1996, a five year old child, hereafter designated as K.L., was carried from the 

recreation room of her home located in Putnam County, West Virginia. According to the 

child's statement she was taken across the street to a church parking lot, was told to take 

her clothes off, and then was brutally sexually assaulted. The sexual assault literally ripped 

the child's vaginal area, and the damage was so extensive that it required reconstructive 

surgery. IT. Vol. 1 , page 213. According to the child's statement she was left bloody and 

with a gapping wound in her vaginal area. According to her statement the assailant picked 

up her clothes and then went behind a church, and she stated that she ran back to her 

home. Once inside the child stated that she returned to the playroom area where she had 

slept the night before and laid down next to her sleeping brother. 

Government officials first notification of the crime was due to a 911 emergency call 

placed by the Respondent, Mr. Lavigne, to the Putnam County Emergency Communications 

Center. The 911 telephone call was recorded, and the recording was played to the jury in 

the Respondent's criminal trial. According to the 911 tape, the Respondent, Mr. Lavigne, 

called the emergency communications center on the morning of February 11, 1996, during 

the early morning hours. According to the 911 tape Mr. Lavigne said to the 911 operator, 

"ah woke up this morning and found my daughter in the bathroom. She is 
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bleeding from the vagina. She says that someone who looks like me, ah, 
took her over to the parking lot and ah hurt her. 911 operator: raped her? Mr. 
Lavigne: ah we think so. She's five." 

TT. Vol. 1 , page 185. 

During this 911 call the Respondent, Mr. Lavigne, on at least five (5) separate 

occasions informed the 911 operator that the child was accusing him of being the rapist. 

Mr. Lavigne stated to the 911 operator, 

"when I got up I was helping her clean up...... she told us about, that 
someone, she thought it was me, took her outside to the parking lot, and 
made her sit out there." 

TT. Vol. 1, page 186. At another time during the 911 call Mr. Lavigne said to the operator, 

"and you should be able to get a good description (of the assailant) she (the 
victim) says it looks just like me. She thought it was me, that's why we 
figured she really didn't want to talk to us at first..."2 TT. Vol. 1, page 187. 

The 911 tape then indicates a voice in the background of the Respondent saying, "we found 

the door open." The evidence in the case would indicate that that voice in the background 

was the Respondent's wife. TT. Vol. 1, page 187. Later during the 911 call the Respondent 

said to the 911 operator, 

"yes. Actually she said it was me to start with. (child crying in the 
background) So, ah I suppose someone is going to have to investigate or 
somethin." 

TT. Vol. 1, page 189. Later on during the 911 call the Respondent then volunteered to the 

911 operator that he did not see any other marks on her (outside of the damage to the 

vagina) and then said again, 

"she thought it was me. She got carried out of the house is what she said to 

2Facts of the case clearly indicate that when the child returned to the home after 
the rape, she did not go to her parents for help, but chose to lay down next to her 
brother. 
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us." 

TT. Vol. 1, page 190. 

Therefore, it is obvious from the 911 tape that the Respondent had a preoccupation 

with the fact that his daughter, the victim of this brutal rape, was identifying him as the 

rapist. Mr. Lavigne's mental preoccupation was extensive enough that he brought it up to 

the 911 operator on at least five (5) occasions in a phone call that just lasted a very few 

minutes. 

After the 911 call was placed by the Respondent to Putnam County authorities the 

Putnam County 911 Communications Center dispatched law enforcement and emergency 

medical services to the child's home. During the trial the State of West Virginia called 

paramedic Frank Stover to the stand to testify. Mr. Stover testified that when his 

ambulance arrived at the scene he was met by a gentleman who was the Respondent, Mr. 

Lavigne. He said that Mr. Lavigne told him that he found the little girl in the bathroom and 

she was bleeding from her "bottom" and that she had originally said that she hurt herself 

pooping. TT. Vol. 2, page 419. The paramedic then spoke to the child's mother, Jamie 

Loughner, and she stated that she had put the child in the bathtub to clean her up. And 

stated that when she was washing her in the shower that she had noticed blood coming 

from the child's vagina. TT. Vol. 2, page 422. The paramedic stated that he then spoke 

with the child who was sitting on the couch holding a blanket around her. He stated that he 

asked the child what happened to her, he stated that the child, K.L., stated a man that had 

the same kind of clothes that her daddy was wearing. TT. Vol. 2, page 424. Before the 

child could continue the paramedic said that the Respondent's wife, Mrs. Lavigne, kept 

interrupting her. "You know, we were asking questions. She (Mrs. Lavigne) just kept 

emphasizing over and over by saying honey it couldn't have been your daddy, daddy was in 
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bed with me". The paramedic said that this happened every time the child would talk. TT. 

Vol. 2, page 425. At one point the paramedic testified that after the mother stopped the child 

from talking, the mother stated "honey it couldn't have been your daddy because he was in 

bed with me.", and the child said, "well he sure looked like my daddy." the mother then 

said, "remember you said the man had on green pants." and the child, "no mommy they 

were just like daddy has on." TT. Vol. 2, page 426. 

The paramedic then stated that he spoke with the child again when she was located 

in the back of the ambulance prior to be transported to the hospital. TT. Vol. 2, page 428. 

Paramedic Stover stated that he asked the child how she got back home and the child said, 

"I came in the back door". The child's mother then interrupted and said "remember he (the 

rapist) came in the front door and carried you out the front door naked, or back to the front 

door naked." The victim child then said, "no mommy, daddy carried me out the back door. 

I ran back in that door after daddy hurt me." TT. Vol. 2, page 429. 

The paramedic stated that then they started to take the child to Women and 

Children's Hospital in Charleston and while in route the mother, i.e. the wife of the 

Respondent, kept saying to the child, "just remember, just because the man looked like 

your daddy doesn't mean that it was your daddy. Besides, you told me that he was wearing 

green pants and your daddy does not have green pants." The child started crying and was 

very very agitated and told her mother that "daddy hurt me with his pp" and then the mother 

just kept saying but daddy was in bed with me. TT. Vol. 2, page 430. 

The State of West Virginia also during the trial called another paramedic who was 

involved in the case named Franklin Humphreys. TT. Vol. 2, page 502. During Mr. 

Humphreys' testimony he was asked by the State if he had had any conversation with the 

child victim or the child's mother during the period of time that he was involved in the case. 
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He stated that he had a conversation with the child and asked the child what was wrong 

what had happened. TT. Vol. 2, page 504. The paramedic stated that the child at first 

appearance said that the man who looked like her father had come in and taken her 

outside, and took me over to the she said she believed the playground, and put his pp in her 

pp and hurt her. He stated that when he was talking to her while she was with her parents 

she would say a man who looked like my father or my daddy was the offender. But when 

she was not with her parents, she referred to the person that raped her as my daddy. TT. 

Vol. 2, page 505. Mr. Humphreys stated that in the back of the ambulance just after the 

father had stepped out of the ambulance, a police officer came over and asked her what 

happened. She started by saying my daddy took me over and she referred to him as my 

daddy until the mother got in the ambulance and started telling her that it couldn't be her 

daddy that it just looked like her daddy. TI. Vol. 2, page 505. 

When the child arrived at Women and Childrens Hospital she was seen by her family 

doctor, Dr. Joan Phillips. Dr. Phillips was called by the State to testify in the criminal trial. 

Dr. Phillips said that she had a personal relationship with the child and that she had been 

the child's treating pediatrician in the past and that she had an opportunity to talk to K.L. 

about what had happened. She said after asking her about what had happened she said 

the child stated that a man, and her quote was, "that looks like my daddy", Dr. Phillips 

stated that the inflection in her voice that if it wasn't it sure looked like my daddy. She said 

she stated "it really looked like my daddy, carried me outside to the church parking lot." She 

stated that the child stated that she was asleep in the family room and stated that "he woke 

me up and carried me outside to the church parking lat." She stated that "he put me on the 

grass, took off my pants, and put his pp in mine." TI. Vol. 1, page 205. She stated that the 

man who raped her had on green pants and a shirt that "looked like my daddy's". TI. Vol. 
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1, page 206. She told Dr. Phillips that she told the man to stop, she stated that he took my 

clothes off, and stated that after the man was finished that she ran home. The child stated 

to Dr. Phillips that she then laid down under the blanket at her brother's feet and then she 

said she went upstairs to the bathroom to get a nightgown and towel. Dr. Phillips asked her 

if she had woke up her parents when she returned to the house and she said no she did not 

and she did not go into their room. She said she tried to clean herself up without asking 

them for help. TT. Vol. 1, pages 206 and 207. Dr. Phillips said that when she had asked 

the child if she had seen the man that raped her before, that the child had a change in 

demeanor. That the child diverted her eyes and commented that to this point she wouldn't 

really give good eye contact. And it was just the body language. She diverted her eyes and 

she indicated no. TT. Vol. 1, page 207. 

Dr. Phillips' testimony was that after a physical examination that they found that 

there was a sever laceration that went the entire floor of the vagina and disrupted the 

hymen, basically she said that the whole area was gapping and it had bleed. It was oozing 

still, there were blood clots in the wound area. TT. Vol. 2, page 13. Dr. Phillips stated that 

during her years of experience that K.L.'s injuries were the most extensive vaginal injuries 

she has ever seen. TT. Vol. 1, page 219. 

The State of West Virginia also called a witness to testify in the criminal trial, being 

Kimberly Martin. She stated that she was a physician at Women and Children's Hospital in 

Charleston and that she had worked with Dr. Phillips on the case regarding K.L. 

Dr. Martin testified that she was taking to K.L. about what had happened to her that 

day. Dr. Martin testified that when she asked the child to describe the person that 

committed this rape, the child said, "it looked like my daddy. And she said he had green 

pants and he had a gray shirt with black dots on it and she told us that if she had said 
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anything that the man would spank her." TT. Vol. 2, page 680. Dr. Martin said that she and 

Dr. Phillips had asked the child if she had seen the person that hurt her before and said that 

at that point the child would not look at them. They said the child would just look down and 

shake her head no. They said the child was very calm and very articulate and verbalized 

very well. TT. Vol. 2, page 684. 

Dr. Martin then went on to testify that she witnessed a conflict that occurred between 

the child and the child's mother who was the wife of the Respondent. She stated, "I not only 

witnessed it, I actually was a part of it." TT. Vol. 2, page 685. She stated that there were 

three (3) of us discussing the matter and the conversation ended up into a period of quiet 

argument between the child and her mother. The doctor stated that the child had turned to 

her mother and was very adamant. She said it was daddy. He was wearing green pants. 

And the mother said it could not have been your daddy. He doesn't have green pants. But 

the child was adamant, she would not back off. She repeatedly told her mother that it was 

daddy. The doctor said that the child continued to say that it was daddy and the mother 

became frustrated. You could see she was becoming very frustrated with the argument and 

that the mother looked over at the doctor at that time and insisted that the doctor leave the 

room. After the doctor and mother left the room, the doctor stated that the mother began to 

explain to her a theory of why the father could not have done it in that the mother claimed to 

be such a light sleeper that he could not have gotten out of the bed without her being aware 

of it. TT. Vol. 2, page 686. 

The State of West Virginia called Officer Ron Smith to testify who was the lead 

investigating officer. Officer Smith stated that he first met the child laying on a cot in the 

back of the ambulance. TT. Vol. 2, page 534. He testified that he asked her if she could 

tell him what happened and she nodded her head that 'she could. He said that the child 
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looked at him in the eyes and said her daddy picked her up, carried her out across the 

street to the church parking lot and hurt her. The officer stated I asked her how he hurt her 

and the child said that "daddy told me that if I didn't take my clothes off he was going to 

spank me." The officer testified that the child said that daddy helped her take her clothes 

off and he took his pants off and put his pp in her pp and she pointed down to her vaginal 

area. TT. Vol. 2, page 535. Officer Smith testified that he asked what the individual again 

looked like and she said just like my daddy. TT. Vol. 2, page 535. The officer said that the 

child then stated that after the rape that he daddy picked up the clothes and carried them 

behind the other church, and then got up and ran back to the house. TT. Vol. 2, page 536. 

Officer Smith testified that while he was in back of the ambulance talking to the child 

that a lady got in the ambulance and told him that her name was Jamie Loughner, the 

mother of the child. The officer stated that while the mother got in the ambulance that the 

child was in the middle of telling the officer what had happened. He said Mrs. Loughner 

then interrupted the child and said there is no way it was your daddy. Your daddy was in 

bed with me. The officer said that the child told her mother if it wasn't my daddy it was a 

man that looked just like my daddy and he's got the shirt on my daddy has on now. The 

officer stated that he told the mother that the last thing the child needed right now was not to 

be believed and that it would be best to talk about something else. He informed the mother 

that he would be to the hospital to talk to the child in a little bit. TT. Vol. 2, page 537. 

The officer stated that he interviewed the Respondent, Mr. Lavigne. That Mr. 

Lavigne stated that he got up and found the child in the bathroom with a towel cleaning 

herself. Mr. Lavigne said that the child had told him that she had pooped and that he had 

discovered that she was bleeding from her vaginal area. Officer Smith testified that the 

Respondent, Mr. Lavigne, stated that the child kept telling him that he, the father, carried 
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the child outside to the church parking lot and Mr. Lavigne said that the child said to the 

mother the same thing. 

Officer Smith testified that Mr. Lavinge, the Respondent, said that after they had 

discovered that the child's vaginal area was bleeding that they (he and his wife) talked for a 

while and then they decided to call 911. Mr. Lavigne acknowledged that he told his wife you 

know that there's going to be an investigation and her response was I know I know. TT. Vol. 

2, page 546. 

During the trial the child's mother, Jamie Loughner, was called to testify on behalf of 

the State. She testified that on the morning of the rape that the child had told her that 

daddy had taken her to the church parking lot and hurt me. TT. Vol. 1, page 285. She also 

stated that the child told her that daddy took me over to the church parking lot and stuck his 

pp in mine or something to that affect. TT. Vol. 1, page 286. The mother then also testified 

that as this discussion was taking place that she made an evaluation that daddy could not 

have done this. She based this upon the fact that she was a light sleeper and it would be 

impossible for daddy to have left the bed to have done this without awakening her and she

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