RESPONSE TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. The Circuit Court Correctly Determined Joe Lavigne Was Convicted On 
Insufficient Evidence As A Rational Trier Of Fact Could Not Find Beyond 
A Reasonable Doubt That He Sexually Assaulted His Five-Year-Old 
Daughter KLL. 

II. The Circuit Court Correctly Determined The Trial Court's Instruction To 
The Jury That It Could Find Joe Lavigne Guilty On The Uncorroborated 
Testimony Of The Child Victim Was Erroneous And Denied Mr. Lavigne 
His Due Process Rights To A Fair Trial. 

III. The Circuit Court Correctly Determined The Trial Court's Ruling 
Allowing Only Four Character Witnesses To Testify Denied Joe Lavigne

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The circuit court correctly ruled that Joe Lavigne's convictions were not supported by sufficient 

evidence. KLL testified she did not know the assailant. KLL's out-of-court statements 

implicating Joe were contradicted by other statements indicating the assailant resembled Joe, and 

that she did not know the assailant. The circuit court correctly concluded a rational trier of fact 

could not find guilt beyond a reasonable doubt from this evidence. In addition, KLL's 

description of the assailant is inconsistent with Joe's description at the time of the crime. 

Finally, the circuit court concluded that given the circumstances, it is unlikely Joe committed this 

crime. No physical evidence linked Joe to the crime and the assailant took KLL's clothes, which 

were never found despite several extensive searches by the police. 
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The circuit court further correctly determined Joe was denied his due process rights to a 

fair trial by the trial court's instructions to the jury it could find Joe guilty on the uncorroborated 

testimony of KLL if they believed her testimony beyond a reasonable doubt. The circuit court 

properly ruled this instruction legally erroneous because KLL testified she did not know the 

assailant. This instruction mislead the jury (1) to believe KLL's contradictory, out-of-court 

statements could be considered testimony, and (2) to believe KLL's testimony was sufficient for 

conviction when it was actually beneficial to Joe. This improper instruction relieved the State of 

its burden of proving the element of identity beyond a reasonable doubt. 

The circuit court also correctly determined Joe was denied his due process rights to 

present a defense by the trial court's decision to only allow him to present four character 

witnesses when he had subpoenaed twelve to testify on his behalf. Since no evidence 

corroborated KLL's contradictory, out-of-court statements implicating Joe, Joe's character for 

honesty, for being a loving father, and propensity for being law-abiding and non-violent, as well 

as his credibility, were very important facts for the jury to consider. 

Evidence of good character may create a reasonable doubt of guilt. In only permitting 

four character witnesses to testify, the trial court improperly deprived Joe of the opportunity to 

prove his character and thereby limited his ability to present a defense which could raise a 

reasonable doubt as to his guilt. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Since the circuit court's Order is well-reasoned and the issues were correctly and 

authoritatively decided, oral argument is unnecessary in this case. In addition, the case may be 

decided pursuant to Rule 21 via a memorandum decision as it involves a review of the lower 

court's appropriate analysis of the sufficiency of evidence for conviction, an improper jury 
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instruction that was unsupported by the evidence, and an arbitrary limitation of the number of 

character witnesses at trial. 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 The Circuit Court Correctly Determined Joe Lavigne Was Convicted 
On Insufficient Evidence As A Rational Trier Of Fact Could Not Find 
Beyond A Reasonable Doubt That He Sexually Assaulted His Five
Year-Old Daughter KLL. 

When the trial court sentenced 38 year-old Joe Lavigne (Joe), the court acknowledged 

Joe came from a good family, was honorably discharged from the Anny after seven (7) years of 

service, and that "if you look at the record, this is the only crime that he has been convicted of. 

Its just unbelievable." (A.R. Vol. 8,1120-21). The trial court's comment is accurate because Joe 

is actually innocent of this horrendous crime committed on his five-year-old daughter KLL. 

Despite Joe's good background and character evidence from witnesses that he was an honest, 

good, loving father to his three children, his complete cooperation with law enforcement, he and 

his wife Jamie's testimony he was innocent, and the lack of any physical evidence linking Joe to 

the crime, Joe was nevertheless convicted of this crime. 

The circuit court below, however, correctly determined Joe was convicted on insufficient 

evidence because (1) KLL's testimony at trial that she did not know the identity of her assailant 

actually exonerated Joe; and (2) that Joe was convicted on KLL's contradictory, out-of-court 

statements. (A.R. Vol. 1, 71-84). KLL's description of the assailant also is inconsistent with 

-
Joe's description at the time. The circuit court further indicated that considering all the 

circumstances, it is unlikely Joe committed the crime. (A.R. Vol. 1,58). 

Barbara Allen, Managing Deputy for the Attorney General's Office, was Joe's trial 

attorney and testified at the habeas evidentiary hearing she was convinced KLL believed Joe was 
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not the assailant, (A.R. Vol. 5, 72), that KLL told her and her investigator Joe was in the house 

when the assault occurred (A.R. Vol. 5, 70), and told the trial court at sentencing that Joe was 

convicted on the "weakest case I have ever seen." (A.R. Vol. 8, 1118). 

Standard OfReview And Constitutional Error. 

The State correctly indicates this Court applies a three prong standard of review in 

reviewing challenges to the findings and conclusions of a circuit court in a habeas corpus action. 

See Brief ofPetitioner (hereafter State's Brief) 2-3. 

The State, however, indicates the Court will not review the sufficiency of evidence in a 

habeas case except in extraordinary circumstances, citing Cannell as v. McKenzie, 160 W.Va. 

431,437, 236 S.E.2d 327, 331 (1977). The State is incorrect. Two years after Cannell as, the 

United States Supreme Court decided Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 99 S.Ct. 2781 (1979), a 

case the State fails to cite. Jackson sets the constitutional standard for reviewing sufficiency of 

evidence claims which is "the threshold necessary to guarantee the fundamental protection of 

due process of law.'" (A.R. Vol. 1, 56) (quoting Jackson, 443 U.S. at 319, 99 S.Ct. at 2789). 

That standard is whether there is sufficient evidence for a rational trier of fact to find guilt 

beyond a reasonable doubt. Jackson, 443 U.S. at 324, 99 S.Ct. at 2792. This is the standard 

adopted by the Court in State v. Guthrie, 194 W.Va. 657, 461 S.E. 2d 163 (1995), and followed 

by the circuit court below. (A.R. Vol. 1,55). 

Contrary to the State's assertions, State's Brief30-31, this standard does not mean, as the 

circuit court below noted (A.R. Vol. 1, 57), that "if there is any evidence whatsoever on each of 

the crime's elements, the reviewing court must affirm." Rather, "all of the evidence presented 

must be considered," id., in deciding whether a rational trier of fact could find all the elements 

beyond a reasonable doubt. 
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In Jackson, the Supreme Court found that "a properly instructed jury may occasionally 

convict even when it can be said that no rational trier of fact could find guilt beyond a reasonable 

doubt[.]" Jackson, 443 U.S. at 317, 99 S.Ct. at 2788. That is what occurred in this case. 

The Circumstances Surrounding This Crime Point to Joe's Innocence. 

As Joe's character witnesses related, Joe was a good parent and family man who loved 

and nurtured his three children, ILL, age 7, KLL, age 5, and eLL, age 1. (A.R. Vol. 8, 952-53). 

According to Joe's wife Jamie, Joe had a great relationship with KLL and said, "[h]e's a 

wonderful dad." (A.R. Vol. 7, 340). The day KLL was assaulted, Joe was busy at home fixing 

the family washing machine and painting the back door to their home. (A.R. Vol. 8, 807). That 

evening, he and his wife Jamie entertained two friends, Todd Ferguson and Janice Mullins, 

playing a board game while the children watched a movie. (A.R. Vol. 8,810). Their friends left 

around midnight and the children slept in the recreation room. (A.R. Vol. 8, 811). 

According to Joe and his wife Jamie, both of whom testified to Joe's innocence, an 

intruder must have entered their home (doors were always unlocked), carried KLL across the 

street, and brutally, sexually assaulted her. Jamie testified she is a light sleeper and Joe did not 

get out of bed prior to getting up and finding KLL in the bathroom. (A.R. Vol. 6, 286) (A.R. 

Vol. 7, 339). When Joe summoned Jamie to the bathroom, Joe was in his underwear. (A.R. Vol. 

7,311,339). Jamie said KLL's genitals were red, she saw a dark substance, and thought it was 

diarrhea so she put KLL in the tub and when Jamie saw it was blood pulled her out and 

detennined KLL had been injured. (A.R. Vol. 6, 281-85). The State's assertion that Jamie 

"placed the child in a bathtub arguably with the intent to destroy evidence," State's Brief 16,34, 

after the discovery of the assault is ridiculous and unsupported by the evidence. Upon discovery 
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of the injury, Joe instinctively went outside to look for the assailant, returned, called 911, and 

candidly stated that KLL thought he was the assailant. (A.R. Vol. 8, 816) (A.R. Vol. 5, 177). 

According to the police, Joe was "perfectly cooperative" with them. (A.R. Vol. 7, 625). 

Joe not only voluntarily gave the police his clothes for testing, but asked to give and gave blood 

and pubic hair samples. (A.R. Vol. 7, 613, 615) (A.R. Vol. 5, 178, 248). Additionally, as the 

circuit court found, "there was no physical or forensic evidence that linked Mr. Lavigne to this 

crime." (A.R. Vol. 1,57). 

There were no scratches, bruises, scrapes, blood, or semen found on him. As the 
defense has argued, given the extreme violence of this sexual assault which left 
KLL bloody and gaping, and given where the sexual assault occurred, in a 
parking lot, the fact that there was no physical or forensic evidence whatsoever 
tends to exculpate Mr. Lavigne as KLL's assailant. 

In other words, in the short time between the perpetration of the crime and 
its discovery Mr. Lavigne did not have the opportunity to commit this crime and 
still be completely clean ofany evidence. 

(A.R. Vol. 1, 58). 

Although the circuit court found the State was entitled to the inference Joe had the 

opportunity to complete the crime, the court stated "[t]his is unlikely given the circumstances of 

this case, though. For Mr. Lavigne to grab KLL's clothes, run away from the house, hide KLL's 

clothes in such a manner as they would never be found, return to the house before KLL [again 

KLL has routinely stated that Mr. Lavigne was inside the house when she returned], and to clean 

himselfso as to not have any physical evidence on him, is unlikely." (A.R. Vol. 1,58). 

Joe further cooperated with the police in their efforts to find KLL's clothes which were 

taken by the assailant. Joe voluntarily consented to at least three or four police searches of his 

home for KLL's clothes. (A.R. Vol. 7, 533, 608-10) (A.R. Vol. 8, 880). The police also did a 

"grid search" of the areas around Joe's home, including the garage and family car but found no 
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evidence of either KLL's clothes or any other evidence linking Joe to the crime. (A.R. Vol. 7, 

605-10). 

The Circuit Court Correctly Determined That KLL's In-Court Testimony Was Not Sufficient For 
a Rational Trier of Fact to Find Guilt Beyond A Reasonable Doubt Because KLL Testified She 
Did Not Know The Identity Of Her Assailant. 

As indicated in the circuit court's opinion, A.R. Vol. 1,59-60, KLL testified: 

Q. 	 [KLL], remember you told the Judge and Ms. Allen and everybody that you 
were going to tell us what happened. And we need to know, really, who did 
this to you? Do you remember? 

A. 	 I don't know. 
Q. 	 You don't know? Have you ever seen him before? 
A. 	 [(] Whereupon, the witness turned slightly in chair and looked at the 

defendant. ) 

Trial Tr. Vol. 1,253 [A.R. Vol. 6,253]. 

Q. [After the assault when you ran home]. .. , [KLL], where was your mommy? 
A. 	 She was inside. 
Q. 	 Where was your brother, [ILL]? 
A. 	 He was inside sleeping. 
Q. 	 Where was your little brother, [CLL]? 
A. 	 Inside. 
Q. 	 Where was your daddy? 
A. 	 Inside. 
Q. 	 Everybody was inside, and then you ran in the house. Did you take a minute 

and lie back down beside [ILL]? 
A. 	 (Shaking head no.) 

Id. at 259 [A.R. Vol. 6,259]. 

Q....Do you remember who that person that hurt you looked like? .. 
A. 	 (Whereupon, witness looked over her right shoulder and pointed to the 

Defendant. ) 
Q. 	 Like your daddy? 
A. 	 (No response.) 

!d. at 263 [A.R. Vo1.6, 263]. 

Because KLL affirmatively stated she did not know the identity of her assailant, the 

circuit court correctly concluded a rational trier of fact could not find guilt from this statement. 
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(A.R. Vol. 1, 73). Her testimony actually exonerates Joe because when asked where her daddy 

was, KLL answered "inside." (A.R. Vol. 6, 259). The circuit court further correctly concluded 

that KLL's testimony indicating her father resembled her assailant was insufficient for 

conviction. (A.R. Vol. 1, 71-72). Even the prosecutor conceded this evidence was insufficient 

for conviction when defense counsel made that argument in moving for acquittal and the 

prosecutor stated, "I agree with you there." (A.R. Vol. 8, 1016-17). 

Finally, the circuit court indicated it would not consider KLL's alleged turning in her 

chair and looking at Joe when re-asked if she knew her assailant due to the court reporter's 

taking inappropriate interpretive liberties in putting that in the record. (A.R. Vol. 1, 72). Such a 

look, even if it occurred, can be interpreted many ways and simply does not communicate that 

KLL is identifying Joe as her assailant, particularly in light of her affirmative testimony she did 

not know the identity of her assailant. For example, because KLL said she did not know the 

identity of her assailant, she could have been looking to Joe as her parent because she did not 

know the answer to the question. Or she may have been looking to Joe for emotional support in 

this situation, which was obviously trying for her because, as the circuit court noted, she "shut 

down" on cross-examination. (A.R. Vol. 1, 59). In any event, the circuit court correctly held 

such a supposed look, even if considered, "is insignificant because KLL affirmatively stated that 

she did not know the identity of her assailant." (A.R. Vol. 1, 73). Thus, the circuit court 

correctly found "KLL's testimony alone was not enough to sustain a conviction beyond a 

reasonable doubt." (A.R. Vol. 1, 73). 

The State argues that KLL's courtroom testimony, when considered in conjunction with 

her out-of-court statements, provided sufficient evidence for the jury to conclude Joe was the 

assailant. State's Brief 33. Joe disagrees. As will be shown below, KLL's statements were 
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contradictory and required a trier of fact to essentially guess as to which of her inconsistent out

of-court statements, which were not subject to cross-examination, were correct. A rational trier 

of fact cannot find guilt beyond a reasonable doubt if they must literally guess or speculate as to 

which contradictory, out-of-court statement by the witness to credit. 

KLL Made Contradictory, Out-Of-Court Statements Regarding The Identity Of Her Assailant, 
His Description, And The Description OfHis Clothes. 

The State argues sufficient evidence supports Joe's conviction because "[t]he evidence in 

the case indicates that the victim had clearly identified [Joe] as the perpetrator." State's Brief 32. 

The State's characterization of the record is inaccurate because KLL's statements regarding the 

identity of her assailant are quite contradictory. KLL initially told Joe, her mother Jamie, and 

Officer Ron Smith that her daddy was the assailant. (A.R. Vol. 1, 74). However, KLL 

subsequently told Ron Smith, Dr. Kimberly Martin, Dr. Joan Phillips, and Trooper Donna 

Ashcraft she did not know who the assailant was. (A.R. Vol. 7, 666, 684, 710) (A.R. Vol. 6, 

207). For example, in a videotaped interview in the hospital on February 13, 1996, KLL told 

State Trooper Donna Ashcraft she did not know her assailant. (State's Exhibit 21) (A.R. Vol.7, 

710). In a videotaped interview on April 14, 1996, KLL also told Officer Ron Smith she did not 

know the assailant and had not seen him before. (State's Exhibit 24) (A.R. Vol. 7, 666). 

KLL also told Dr. Joan Phillips, Dr. Kimberly Martin, and paramedic Franklin 

Humphreys that the assailant "looked like" her daddy. (A.R. Vol. 1, 73). KLL also told her 

mom Jamie the assailant looked like other people. (A.R. Vol. 8, 734-35, 757-58). Thus, since 

KLL made a number of conflicting statements regarding the identity of her assailant, it cannot be 

concluded beyond a reasonable doubt she clearly identified Joe as her attacker. 
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In addition, KLL' smother Jamie indicated KLL had a history of mistaking other men for 

Joe. KLL's mother testified that on at least three occasions KLL had confused another person 

with Joe. (A.R. Vol. 7, 314-15). For example, on one occasion Todd Ferguson, a friend, read 

KLL a bedtime story when she was sleepy and the next morning KLL swore it was her daddy 

who read her the story. (A.R. Vol. 6,289).

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